
 

 

Licensing 
Committee 
Agenda 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To: Councillor Karen Jewitt (Chair) 

Councillor Christopher Herman (Vice-Chair) 
 Councillors Kola Agboola, Patsy Cummings, Nina Degrads, 

Stella Nabukeera, Margaret Bird, Richard Chatterjee, Ian Parker, Ria Patel 
and Tony Pearson 
 

 
 
A meeting of the Licensing Committee which you are hereby summoned to attend, 
will be held on Tuesday, 29 November 2022 at 6.30 pm in Council Chamber, 
Town Hall, Katharine Street, Croydon CR0 1NX  
 
 
Stephen Lawrence-Orumwense 
Monitoring Officer 
London Borough of Croydon 
Bernard Weatherill House 
8 Mint Walk, Croydon CR0 1EA 

Marianna Ritchie 
Senior Democratic Services Officer 
marianna.ritchie@croydon.gov.uk 
www.croydon.gov.uk/meetings 
Monday, 21 November 2022 

 
 
If you would like to record the meeting, we ask that you read the guidance on the 
recording of public meetings here before attending. 
 
The agenda papers for all Council meetings are available on the Council website 
www.croydon.gov.uk/meetings  
 
If you require any assistance, please contact Marianna Ritchie as detailed above.  
 

Public Document Pack

https://croydonintranet.moderngov.co.uk/ecCatDisplayClassic.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13507&path=0
http://www.croydon.gov.uk/meetings


 

 

AGENDA – PART A 
  

1.   Apologies for Absence  
 To receive any apologies for absence from any members of the 

Committee. 
  

2.   Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 3 - 10) 
 To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 29 September 2022 as 

an accurate record. 
  
  

3.   Minutes of previous Licensing Sub-Committee Meetings (Pages 11 
- 20) 

 To agree the minutes of the Licensing Sub-Committees meetings held 
on: 
 
 

       1 September 2022; 
       9 September 2022; and, 
       23 September 2022 as accurate records.  

  
4.   Disclosure of Interests  

 Members are invited to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests 
(DPIs) they may have in relation to any item(s) of business on today’s 
agenda. 
  

5.   Urgent Business (if any)  
 To receive notice of any business not on the agenda which in the 

opinion of the Chair, by reason of special circumstances, be considered 
as a matter of urgency. 
 
  

6.   Licensing Act 2003 - Review of the London Borough of Croydon 
Statement of Licensing Policy and Cumulative Impact Areas within 
the London Borough of Croydon Statement of Licensing Policy 
(Pages 21 - 180) 

 This report details the consultation undertaken as part of the review of 
the London Borough of Croydon Statement of Licensing Policy and 
Cumulative Impact Areas within it, and seeks a recommendation to full 
Council for adoption of the revised policy. 
 

 
 



 

 

3

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Licensing Committee 
 
 

Meeting of held on Monday, 26 September 2022 at 6.30 pm in Council Chamber, Town Hall, 
Katharine Street,  CR0 1NX 

 
MINUTES 

 
Present: 
 

Councillor Karen Jewitt (Chair); 
Councillor Christopher Herman (Vice-Chair); 

 Councillors Kola Agboola, Patsy Cummings, Nina Degrads, Stella Nabukeera, 
Margaret Bird, Ian Parker, Ria Patel and Tony Pearson 
 

Also  
Present: 

Councillor Richard Chatterjee (virtual) 
 

  
PART A 

  
7/22   
 

Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 12 April 2022 were agreed as an accurate 
record. 
  
  

8/22   
 

Minutes of Previous Licensing Sub-Committee Meetings 
 
 
The minutes of the meetings of the Licensing sub-Committee held on: 
  

-        29 April 2022; 
-        21 June 2022; 
-        23 June 2022; 
-        7 July 2022; 
-        15 July 2022; 
-        21 July 2022; 
-        27 July 2022; 
-        28 July 2022; and 
-        11 August 2022 were agreed as accurate records. 

  
9/22   
 

Urgent Business (if any) 
 
 
There were no items of urgent business. 
  
  

10/22   
 

Disclosure of Interests 
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 

 
 

There were no declarations of interests.  
  

11/22   
 

London Local Authorities Act 1990 - Application For Street Designation 
Order x 3 
 
 
Michael Goddard, Head of Environmental Health, Trading Standards and 
Licensing outlined the nature of the applications being sought, explaining that 
Street Trading applications involved the display of goods for sale or the 
provision of services on the public highway.  
  
There were three applications for Street Designation Orders for consideration 
by the committee at this meeting. During presentation of the first application, 
by Mr Hiratullah Salem on the highway outside 5 London Road, Croydon CR0 
2RE, officers explained that there would be 4.10 clear metres between the 
edge of the shop display and the edge of the pavement. The minimum 
pavement space required by Croydon Council was two metres.  
  
Officers explained that no comments or objections had been received from 
local residents or any of the licensing consultees for a licence to operate from 
8 am to 9 pm Monday to Sunday. Officers explained that there were fifteen 
similar sites within the vicinity and that if the committee was of the opinion that 
that was enough within the saturation zone and that granting another such 
application would have a detrimental effect on safety in the area then there 
was a presumption that this application could be refused.   
  
The applicant was present to respond to technical questions from the 
committee.  
  
Members questioned whether the access of wheelchair users had been 
considered, to which officers confirmed that the space between the display 
and the road was compliant with both Transport for London (TfL) and Croydon 
Council requirements for pedestrian space. Officers also clarified that if the 
display failed to comply with those measurements at any point that that would 
be a matter for enforcement by the Licensing team. Congregation of people 
around the display impeding access to the walkway could also result in action 
from the enforcement team, usually by planning better management by the 
licence holder. 
  
Members expressed concerns that the edge of the display was close to a bus 
stop, and officers clarified that there were more than five clear metres 
between them. Officers also confirmed that the location had held a temporary 
licence for this activity for five years and that in that time there had been no 
enforcement issues.  

Page 6



 

 
 

  
The Chair invited the applicant to introduce themselves and make their 
representations. 
  
The applicant confirmed that the display would remain in exactly the same 
situation as was shown in the photographs in the reports pack. 
  
Councillor Parker then MOVED to vote on the application which was 
SECONDED by Councillor Pearson. 
  
RESOLVED, unanimously to: 
  

1.     Designate the site outside 5 London Road, Croydon, CR0 2LE for the 
purposes of street trading, and; 

2.     To grant a street trading licence to the site. 
  
  
The second application put to the committee for consideration was on the 
highway outside TFC Croydon Limited 73-77 London Road, Croydon CR0 
2RF and the applicant was Mr Ercan Ucar who was represented at the 
meeting by his sister.  
  
Officers explained that this site had also been operating a temporary licence 
and that no comments or objections had been received from local residents or 
from the consulted authorities. 
  
Members expressed similar concerns about those in wheelchairs being able 
to pass the displays, and checked how the enforcement team monitored 
potential issues like this, to which officers explained that there were regular 
patrols and that issues with free passage would be taken up with the licence 
holder to manage. 
  
In response to member questions officers answered that two metres was the 
minimum required distance from the edge of a shop display to the kerb and 
that this section of the road was Croydon Council-maintained.  
  
The Chair stated that the road in the images in the reports pack appeared to 
be very narrow outside the display, and officers asked the committee to 
consider whether that was putting pedestrian safety at risk. 
  
Officers explained that no issues had been raised whilst the applicant 
operated under the temporary licence, which had been in place for seven 
months.  
  

Page 7



 

 
 

The applicant responded to the committee’s concerns that there had been no 
accidents in the time that the temporary licence had been in place, and that 
they tried to keep the displays outside very safe and neat. Ms Ucan explained 
that outside mainly vegetables were displayed, and that crowding did not tend 
to happen as consumers bought whole boxes rather than individual items of 
food. 
  
Officers also explained that it was for members to decide based on the 
information provided whether the saturation point of an area had been 
reached, taking into account the safety of the public. 
  
It was MOVED by the Chair and SECONDED by Councillor Herman and put 
to the vote. 
  
RESOLVED, by seven votes in favour and two abstentions, to:  
 
 

1.     Designate the site outside TFC Croydon Limited 73-77 London Road, 
Croydon CR0 2RF for the purposes of street trading, and; 

2.     To grant a street trading licence to the site. 
  
  
The third and final application was by Mr Khalil Khidir for the premises on the 
highway outside 66 London Road, Croydon CR0 2TB. Officers explained that 
this display was 1.6 metres long and that it protruded 0.80 metres onto the 
pavement, leaving 3.80 clear metres between the edge of the display and the 
kerb, and that there was a tree on the pavement from which the edge of the 
display was located 2.10 metres away. It was clarified that the applicant 
already had a display outside the neighbouring shop, and that he sought an 
additional display to cover both shopfronts. There had been no comments or 
objections from those who had been consulted on the application. 
  
Officers clarified for the committee that the designation was requested 
between the hours of 8 am and 9 pm, and this was confirmed by the 
applicant. Members raised some concerns around the situation of the tree and 
officers explained that the measurement was taken from the base of the tree.  
  
In response to a question from a member the applicant stated that the display 
would not be in the way of the entrance to a residence. 
  
The Chair MOVED to vote which was SECONDED and: 
  
RESOLVED, unanimously to: 
  

Page 8



 

 
 

1.     Designate the site outside 66 London Road, Croydon CR0 2TB for the 
purposes of street trading, and; 

2.     To grant a street trading licence to the site. 
 
 

  
12/22   
 

Pavement Licensing - The Business and Planning Act 2020 
 
 
The Head of Environmental Health, Trading Standards and Licensing 
presented the report to members with some background information about 
how the issuing of pavement licences had changed due to the impact of 
Covid-19 on certain businesses, particularly pubs, restaurants and cafes. The 
Government had introduced Pavement Licensing to assist those most heavily 
affected businesses to operate outside to mitigate public health measures, 
and that the decisions around issuing those licences had been delegated to 
officers at the time.  
  
This delegation was due to end on 30 September 2022 and so the council 
sought to extend that delegation for a further year. Officers anticipated that 
this provision for pavement licensing may become permanent by statute from 
the next year.  
  
In response to questions from the committee officers explained that a lot of 
the businesses had already applied for and been granted street trading 
licences, so they did not have to keep paying for annual pavement licences, 
and this meant that income from street trading licences to the council was 
reduced. 
  
Businesses were expected to keep their displays smart and clean and there 
was a requirement that outside furniture was not fixed in place so that it could 
be removed at night. The committee expressed its desire to support 
businesses when considering the saturation point of outside trading. To that 
end the committee asked questions and was satisfied that outside tables and 
chairs would have a requirement to be cordoned off and that there had to 
remain enough room around them for pedestrians to use the pavement safely.  
  
The committee was encouraged to inform the Licensing team if any member 
was aware of any business in breach of its licensing objectives.  
  
Councillor Parker MOVED to vote on the recommendations which was 
SECONDED by Councillor Parker and: 
  
RESOLVED, unanimously to: 

Page 9



 

 
 

  
1.1       Delegate authority to the Corporate Director, Sustainable Communities, 

Regeneration & Economic Recovery to do all things necessary to extend 
and continue to implement and operate the pavement licensing 
arrangements under the Business and Planning Act 2020, as amended, 
including but not limited to the determination of standard conditions 
which apply, determining applications, revocation of licenses and 
authorising officers to enforce and exercise these functions.  

1.2     Set the fee for an application for a pavement licence at £100, which is 
the maximum fee permitted under the legislation for these licenses, such 
licenses to be granted for a period up to and including 30 September 
2023. 

  
13/22   
 

Licensing Act 2003 - Consultation: Review of London Borough of 
Croydon Statement of Licensing Policy including review of cumulative 
impact zones/policies and proposed introduction of a further cumulative 
impact area within the London Borough of Croydon Statement of 
Licensing Policy 
 
 
The Head of Environmental Health, Trading Standards and Licensing 
explained to the committee that the council was duty bound to produce a 
Statement of Licensing Policy and that this was to be reviewed every five 
years. The council’s policy had last been reviewed in 2017, and so the 
committee was asked to approve the beginning of a consultation process on 
the proposed changes which would be brought back to the committee in 
November before being ratified by Council in December.  
  
The committee had a general discussion around the consultation process 
seeking to ensure ward councillors were included, to which officers confirmed 
they would be. They also discussed Cumulative Impact Areas (CIAs) and that 
the committee felt it was not able to refuse alcohol licences to shops within 
them, to which officers explained that moral objections had to be licensing-
based. The committee was assured that police were highly active in CIAs and 
that it gave them a review mechanism to home in on premises that caused 
crime and disorder problems if they arose.  
  
The Chair MOVED to vote on the recommendations which was SECONDED 
by Councillor Herman and: 
  
RESOLVED, unanimously to: 
  
1.1.         Agree to commence consultation on the statutory 5 year review of the 

Council’s Licensing Policy under the Licensing Act 2003;  

Page 10



 

 
 

  
1.2.         Agree to consult on the review of current Cumulative Impact Areas as 

set out in the Statement of Licensing Policy to assess whether or not 
these ought to be retained;  

  
1.3.         Agree to consult on the potential introduction of a new Cumulative 

Impact Area as detailed in section 3.24 of the report;  
  
1.4.         Agree that the consultation referred to in paragraphs 1.1-1.3 shall be 

for a period of 6 weeks as detailed in paragraph 4.1 of the report;  
  
1.5.         Note that the outcome of the consultation exercise will be reported 

back to Committee for further consideration and then onward 
recommendation to Full Council regarding adoption of the Councils’ 
Statement of Licensing Policy including Cumulative Impact Areas, if 
any. 

  
14/22   
 

Exclusion of the Press and Public 
 
 
The following motion was moved and seconded and: 
  
RESOLVED: 
  
“That, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the press 
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business 
on the grounds that it involved the likely disclosure of exempt information 
falling within those paragraphs indicated in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government Act 1972, as amended.” 
  
The motion was put and it was agreed by the Committee to exclude the press 
and public for the remainder of the meeting. 
  
  

15/22   
 

Part B Minutes of the Licensing Sub-Committee meeting held on 5 April 
2022 
 
 
RESOLVED: 
  
“That, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the press 
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business 
on the grounds that it involved the likely disclosure of exempt information 
falling within those paragraphs indicated in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government Act 1972, as amended.” 
  
 
 

Page 11



 

 
 

 
 

The meeting ended at 8.15 pm 
 

 
Signed:   

Date:   

 

Page 12



 
 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
 
 

Meeting held on Thursday, 1 September 2022 at 10.30 am. This meeting was held remotely. 
 

MINUTES 
 

Present: 
 

Councillors Karen Jewitt (Chair), Nina Degrads and Ian Parker 
 

  
Also  
Present: 

 
Michael Goddard (Head of Environmental Health, Trading Standards and 
Licensing); Mark Turnbull (Solicitor and Legal Advisor to the Committee); Tariq 
Aniemeka-Bailey (Trainee Democratic Services Officer) and Jayde Watts 
(Trainee Democratic Services Officer) 
 

  
PART A 

  
124/22   
 

Appointment of Chair 
 
 
Councillor Nina Degrads nominated Councillor Karen Jewitt as Chair and 
Councillor Ian Parker seconded the motion.  
  
The Sub-Committee RESOLVED to appoint Councillor Karen Jewitt as Chair 
for the duration of the meeting of the Sub Committee. 
  
  

125/22   
 

Disclosure of Interests 
 
 
There were none. 
  

126/22   
 

Urgent Business (if any) 
 
 
There were no items of urgent business. 
  
  

127/22   
 

LICENSING ACT 2003 - Application For Variation To A Premises Licence 
at 6 The Parade, 258 Coulsdon Road, Old Coulsdon 
 
 
The Licensing Sub-Committee considered the Application for a Variation to a 
Premises Licence at 6 The Parade 258 Coulsdon Road, Coulsdon, CR5 
1EH and the representations received as contained in the report of the 
Corporate Director, Sustainable Communities, Regeneration & Economic 
Recovery.  

Public Document Pack

Page 13

Agenda Item 3



 

 
 

  
The Sub-Committee also considered the representations made by the 
Applicant, and an objector during the hearing, and the documents submitted 
by the Applicant in support of their application. The Sub-Committee noted that 
although some of the objectors were not present at the hearing, they had the 
benefit of their written representations as part of the report. 
  
The Sub-Committee, having reference to the licensing objectives under the 
Licensing Act 2003 the Statutory Guidance issued under S182 of the 
Licensing Act 2003 and the Council Statement of Licensing Policy, 
RESOLVED to GRANT the Application on the basis that the Sub-Committee 
were satisfied that it would be appropriate to promote the licensing objectives 
to do so.   
  
The reasons of the Sub-Committee were as follows: 

1. In respect of the prevention of crime and disorder objective, the Sub-
Committee noted that there was no objection to the Application from 
the Police, and noted also that in accordance with the Statutory 
Guidance the Police should usually be the licensing authority’s main 
source of advice on matters relating to the promotion of the crime and 
disorder licensing objective. 

  
2. In respect of prevention of public nuisance objective, the Sub-

Committee noted the importance of focussing on the effects of the 
variation of the licensable activities at the specific premises on persons 
living and working (including those carrying on business) in the area 
around the premises which may be disproportionate and unreasonable, 
as is suggested by the Statutory Guidance. The Sub-Committee also 
noted this may include in appropriate circumstances the reduction of 
the living and working amenity and environment of other persons living 
and working in the area of the licensed premises.  

  
3. The Sub-Committee noted that there was no objection to the 

Application from Environmental Health, which is the main source of 
advice in relation to the public nuisance licensing objective. 

  
4. In this regard the Sub-Committee considered concerns raised relating 

to an increase in noise nuisance to residents generally, from customers 
leaving the premises later in the evening and from recorded music and 
live music, and from customers sitting in outside areas at the premises. 
The Sub-Committee also considered concerns raised about an 
increase in the number of people on The Parade and in an alley next to 
the premises, and possible increases in anti-social behaviour, and 
littering.  

  
5. The Sub-Committee also considered the specific concerns raised by a 

resident living above the premises relating to an increase in noise 
nuisance from recorded and live music, and from customers sitting in 
outside areas, and from customers leaving the premises later in the 
evening.    

Page 14



 

 
 

  
6. As regards possible increases in anti-social behaviour, and littering, the 

Sub-Committee were aware, and had reference to the Statutory 
Guidance which provides that, beyond the immediate area surrounding 
the premises, these are matters for the personal responsibility of 
individuals under the law. An individual who engages in antisocial 
behaviour is accountable in their own right. The Sub-Committee was 
reassured by the Applicant’s Noise Management Policy, including 
Dispersal Policy, and the commitment to clear litter from the front of the 
premises.  

  
7. The Sub-Committee also noted that in the Statement of Licensing 

Policy, it is recognised that the diversity of premises selling alcohol 
covers a wide range of contrasting styles and characteristics and full 
regard will be had to those differences and the differing impact these 
will have on the local community. In this respect, the Sub-Committee 
noted what appeared to be a significant level of support from local 
residents as indicated in the document “The Aycorn Shoppe’s History 
and Mission Statement” submitted by the Applicant. 

  
8. The Sub-Committee was reassured by the Applicant’s Noise 

Management Policy, including the intended timing and frequency of 
recorded and live music, and the use of small domestic speakers only 
and no dedicated bass speaker. The Sub-Committee was also 
reassured by the Applicant’s commitment to try and address the 
concerns of the resident living above the premises, and to install sound 
dampening measures in the premises, and to explore the possibility of 
more substantial measures.   

  
9. The Sub-Committee would like to thank all participants for the manner 

in which they engaged with and supported the hearing in providing 
information to allow the Sub-Committee’s consideration.  

  
  

128/22   
 

Exclusion of the Press and Public 
 
 
This item was not required. 
  
 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 11.30 am 
 

 
Signed:   

Date:   

 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



 
 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
 
 

Meeting held on Friday, 9 September 2022 at 10.30 am. This meeting was held remotely 
 

MINUTES 
 

Present: 
 

Councillor Christopher Herman (Vice-Chair); 

 Councillors Richard Chatterjee and Nina Degrads 
 

  
PART A 

  
129/22   
 

Appointment of Chair 
 
 
Councillor Christopher Herman was appointed as Chair for the meeting.  
  
It was MOVED by the Chair and RESOLVED to adjourn the meeting in the 
interest of the public due to the sad death of Her Majesty Queen Elizabeth II.  
  
  

130/22   
 

Disclosure of Interests 
 
 
There were none. 
  

131/22   
 

Urgent Business (if any) 
 
 
There were no items of urgent business. 
  
  

132/22   
 

LICENSING ACT 2003 - Application For a Premises Licence 28 George 
Street, Croydon 
 
 
RESOLVED, to: 
  
Defer this item of business to a meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee on 
Friday 23 September 2022.  
  
 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 10.40 am 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 17



 

 
 

 
Signed:   

Date:   

 

Page 18



 
 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
 
 

Meeting of held on Friday, 23 September 2022 at 10.30 am in  
 

MINUTES 
 

Present: 
 

Councillor Christopher Herman (Vice-Chair); 

 Councillors Richard Chatterjee and Nina Degrads 
 

  
PART A 

  
17/22   
 

Appointment of Chair 
 
 
It was MOVED by Councillor Chatterjee and SECONDED by Councillor 
Degrads and RESOLVED to appoint Councillor Herman as Chair for this 
meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee. 
  

18/22   
 

Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
 
The minutes of the Licensing Sub-Committee would be agreed at the meeting 
of the Licensing Committee on 26 September 2022.  
  

19/22   
 

Disclosure of Interests 
 
 
There were none. 
  

20/22   
 

Urgent Business (if any) 
 
 
There were no items of urgent business. 
  
  

21/22   
 

LICENSING ACT 2003 - Application For a Premises Licence 28 George 
Street, Croydon 
 
 
The Licensing Sub-Committee considered the Application for a Premises 
Licence at 28 George Street Croydon CRO 1PB and the representations 
received as contained in the report of the Corporate Director, Sustainable 
Communities, Regeneration & Economic Recovery.  
  

Public Document Pack

Page 19



 

 
 

The Sub-Committee also considered the representations made by the 
Applicant, and the documents submitted by the Applicant in support of their 
application. The Sub-Committee noted that although the objectors were not 
present at the hearing, they had the benefit of their written representations as 
part of the report. 
  
The Sub-Committee, having reference to the licensing objectives under the 
Licensing Act 2003 the Statutory Guidance issued under S182 of the 
Licensing Act 2003 and the Council Statement of Licensing Policy, 
RESOLVED to GRANT the Application on the basis that the Sub-Committee 
was satisfied that it would be appropriate to promote the licensing objectives 
to do so.   
  
The reasons of the Sub-Committee were as follows: 

  
  
1. In respect of the prevention of crime and disorder objective, the Sub-

Committee noted that there was no objection to the Application from 
the Police, and noted also that in accordance with the Statutory 
Guidance the Police should usually be the licensing authority’s main 
source of advice on matters relating to the promotion of the crime and 
disorder licensing objective. 

  
2.    In respect of the prevention of public nuisance objective, the Sub-

Committee noted the importance of focussing on the effects of the 
licensable activities at the specific premises on persons living and 
working (including those carrying on business) in the area around the 
premises which may be disproportionate and unreasonable, as is 
suggested by the Statutory Guidance. The Sub-Committee also noted 
this may include in appropriate circumstances the reduction of the 
living and working amenity and environment of other persons living and 
working in the area of the licensed premises.  
  

3.    The Sub-Committee noted that there was no objection to the 
Application from Environmental Health, which was the main source of 
advice in relation to the public nuisance licensing objective. 

  
4.    In this regard the Sub-Committee considered concerns raised relating 

to an increase in noise nuisance to residents and local businesses 
generally, from recorded music and live music, including from music as 
customers used the front doors, and from customers in outdoor seating 
at the front of the premises. The Sub-Committee also considered 
concerns raised about outdoor seating at the front of the premises 

Page 20



 

 
 

causing congestion on the pavement on George Street. The Sub-
Committee also considered concerns raised about possible increases 
in drunkenness and anti-social behaviour, and concerns that the 
outdoor seating at the front of the premises would become a magnet 
for anti-social behaviour.   
  

5.    The Sub-Committee also considered the specific concerns raised by a 
resident living a short distance from the premises relating to an 
increase in noise nuisance from recorded and live music, and an 
increase in drunkenness and anti-social behaviour which made her feel 
fearful and vulnerable.     
  

6.    As regards possible increases in anti-social behaviour, the Sub-
Committee was aware, and had reference to the Statutory Guidance 
which provided that, beyond the immediate area surrounding the 
premises, these were matters for the personal responsibility of 
individuals under the law. An individual who engaged in antisocial 
behaviour was accountable in their own right. The Sub-Committee was 
reassured by the document submitted by the Applicant entitled “Off 
trade licence 28 George Street” which sought to explain and allay 
concerns about off licence sales at the premises. The Sub-Committee 
was also reassured that any off-licence sales would only be over the 
bar, and by proposed conditions preventing any open containers of 
alcohol or glassware leaving the premises, and in relation to SIA door 
supervisors. The Sub-Committee was also reassured by the 
Applicant’s decision not to pursue proposals for outdoor seating at the 
front of the premises. 

  
7. In relation to the prevention of crime and disorder objective, and the 

prevention of public nuisance objective, the Sub-Committee was also 
reassured that the Applicant had engaged with the Police, and that 
following discussions with the Police licensing officer the Applicant had 
amended the Application to include conditions to be placed on the 
licence should the Application be granted, and also to reduce the 
permitted hours specified in the Application. 
  

8. The Sub-Committee also noted that in the Statement of Licensing 
Policy, it was recognised that the diversity of premises selling alcohol 
covered a wide range of contrasting styles and characteristics and full 
regard would be had to those differences and the differing impact these 
would have on the local community. In this respect, the Sub-Committee 
noted what appeared to be a level of support from local residents and 
businesses as indicated in the document entitled “Supporting 

Page 21



 

 
 

Statements for licensing of 28 George Street” submitted by the 
Applicant. 

  
9.    The Sub-Committee was reassured by the Applicant’s representations 

as regards the nature of the premises and the live and recorded music, 
the positioning of speakers etc. and by the fact the Applicant had a 
noise management plan. The Sub-Committee was also reassured by 
the Applicant’s commitment to have a dialogue with local residents in 
an effort to mitigate any on-going concerns.   
  

10.                   The Sub-Committee would like to thank all participants for the 
manner in which they engaged with and supported the hearing in 
providing information to allow the Sub-Committee’s consideration.  

  
 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at Time Not Specified 
 

 
Signed:   

Date:   

 

Page 22



LC201217R0 - 1 -  

 
REPORT TO: LICENSING COMMITTEE                                                      

29 NOVEMBER 2022 
 

SUBJECT: LICENSING ACT 2003 –  
REVIEW OF LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON 

STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY AND CUMULATIVE 
IMPACT AREAS WITHIN THE LONDON BOROUGH OF 

CROYDON STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY  
 

LEAD OFFICER: Corporate Director, Sustainable Communities, 
Regeneration and Economic Recovery Department 

CABINET MEMBER: Cllr. Scott Roche, Cabinet Member for Streets & 
Environment  

WARDS: ALL 

CORPORATE PRIORITY/POLICY CONTEXT: Statutory review of policy 
document.  
 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
The Licensing Act 2003 became fully operational on 24 November 2005. The 
local authority has been processing applications with regard to this 
legislation since 7 February 2005, which was the start of the conversion 
period under the Act. 
There are no financial implications associated with this report, save for those 
set out in the body of the report with regard to decision making by the 
Licensing Sub-Committee, the substantive licensing committee and full 
Council. 
The costs of administering the functions associated with this report will be 
met from existing resources. 

 
 
 
 

1. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
  The Committee is asked to: 
 
1.1. Consider the outcome of the consultation on the review of Statement of 

Licensing Policy as summarised in the report and detailed in full at 
Appendices 3 and 4 and proposed revisions to that Policy as detailed in the 
report and set out in full at Appendix 8. 

 
1.2 Consider the response to the consultation on the 5 potential Cumulative 

Impact Areas as set out in Appendix 4 and the reasons and evidence base 
for this (Appendix 1, 2, 3 and 4); and 

Page 23

Agenda Item 6



LC201217R0 - 2 -  

 
1.3 Agree that, as a result of the response to the consultation and in light of the 

information within the draft assessment of cumulative impact: 
 
1.3.1 The Licensing authority remains of the opinion that the number of relevant 

authorisations (for the sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises from 
off-licenses, shops and supermarkets) in respect of premises in cumulative 
impact areas 1-4 described in the draft cumulative impact assessment at 
Appendix 7 is such that it is likely that it would be inconsistent with the 
authority's duty under section 4(1) of the Licensing Act 2003 to grant any 
further relevant authorisations in respect of premises in cumulative impact 
areas 1-4;  

 
1.3.2 The Licensing authority is of the opinion that the number of relevant 

authorisations (for the sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises from 
off-licenses, shops and supermarkets) in respect of premises in cumulative 
impact area 5 described in the draft cumulative impact assessment at 
Appendix 7 is such that it is likely that it would be inconsistent with the 
authority’s duty under Section 4(1) of the Licensing Act 2003 to grant any 
further relevant authorisations in respect of the premises in cumulative 
impact area 5;  

 
1.3.3 That a summary of the draft cumulative impact assessment, which is set out 

in full at Appendix 7 be incorporated into the revised Statement of Licensing 
Policy to be recommended to Full Council for approval; 

 
1.4 Recommend to Full Council the adoption and publication of the revised 

Statement of Licensing Policy 2023-2028 at Appendix 8.  
 
1.5 Note that if the revised Statement of Licensing Policy is approved by Full 

Council, officers will make arrangements to ensure that the Statement of 
Licensing Policy and Cumulative Impact Assessment is published in 
accordance with statutory requirements. It is proposed that the revised policy 
and cumulative impact assessment will be operative from no later than 
February 2023.  

 
 
2. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
2.1 The Licensing Act 2003 made local authorities, as licensing authorities, 

responsible for the administration of licences and certificates for: 
 

• The sale/supply of alcohol 
• The provision of regulated entertainment and 
• The provision of late night refreshment 

 
 There are four licensing objectives which underpin the legislation and these 

are:  
 

• The prevention of crime and disorder 
• The prevention of public nuisance 
• Public safety  

Page 24



LC201217R0 - 3 -  

• The protection of children from harm 
 

 All decisions under the Act must be taken with a view to promoting these 
licensing objectives. 

 
2.2 In addition to processing applications, the Act requires each licensing authority to 

determine and publish a policy setting out how it will exercise its functions under 
the Act. The first London Borough of Croydon Licensing Policy was published on 
1 December 2004. The Act requires the Council to review and re-publish its 
policy every 5 years but it may also review it at any time within that 5-year period 
should it see fit.  

 
2.3 The policy was last reviewed in 2017 and re-published in February 2018. The 

Council has therefore commenced a review of its policy, consulted on the draft 
proposals and the revised policy needs to be considered by the Licensing 
Committee and, if satisfied, recommended to Full Council for adoption. The 
proposed revised Statement of Licensing Policy is at Appendix 8 for members’ 
consideration. Once the policy is approved by Full Council, there are publication 
requirements which need to be met as detailed in the body of the report below.   

 
2.4 This report details the consultation undertaken as part of the review and seeks a 

recommendation to full Council for adoption of the revised policy.  
 
3. DETAIL 
 
3.1 A report was brought to Licensing Committee on 26 September requesting 

authority to commence consultation on the statutory review of the Statement of 
Licensing Policy, including consultation on a review of existing cumulative impact 
areas and a proposed new cumulative impact area which, if adopted, would be 
set out within the Statement of Licensing Policy. For ease of reference, the 
report and supporting documentation can be viewed here: 
https://democracy.croydon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=3055&
Ver=4.  

 
Statement of Licensing Policy: 
 
3.2 In reviewing and adopting a Statement of Licensing Policy, the Licensing 

Authority and in turn Full Council when it is asked to approve the policy, must 
have regard to the following fundamental principles: 

 
• All statements of policy should begin by stating the four licensing 

objectives, which the licensing policy should promote. In determining its 
policy, a licensing authority must have regard to the Statutory Guidance 
and give appropriate weight to the views of consultees.  

• While statements of policy may set out a general approach to making 
licensing decisions, they must not ignore or be inconsistent with provisions 
in the 2003 Act. For example, a statement of policy must not undermine the 
right of any person to apply under the terms of the 2003 Act for a variety of 
permissions and to have any such application considered on its individual 
merits.  

• Similarly, no statement of policy should override the right of any person to 
make representations on an application or to seek a review of a licence or 

Page 25

https://democracy.croydon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=3055&Ver=4
https://democracy.croydon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=3055&Ver=4


LC201217R0 - 4 -  

certificate where provision has been made for them to do so in the 2003 
Act.  

• Statements of policy should make clear that:  
� licensing is about regulating licensable activities on licensed premises, by 

qualifying clubs and at temporary events within the terms of the 2003 Act; 
and  

� conditions attached to various authorisations will be focused on matters 
which are within the control of individual licence holders and others with 
relevant authorisations, i.e. the premises and its vicinity. 

• A statement of policy should also make clear that licensing law is not the 
primary mechanism for the general control of nuisance and anti-social 
behaviour by individuals once they are away from the licensed premises 
and, therefore, beyond the direct control of the individual, club or business 
holding the licence, certificate or authorisation concerned. Nonetheless, it is 
a key aspect of such control and licensing law will always be part of a 
holistic approach to the management of the evening and night-time 
economy in town and city centres. 

 
Cumulative Impact:   
 
3.3 Cumulative impact is the potential impact on the promotion of the licensing 

objectives (listed at 2.1 above) of a number of licensed premises concentrated in 
one area which are disproportionate and arise as a result of the concentration of 
particular types of premises in close proximity. In other words, where there is 
evidence to show that the number or density of licensed premises in the area is 
having a cumulative impact and leading to problems which are undermining the 
licensing objectives the Council as Licensing Authority may consider it 
appropriate to introduce a Cumulative Impact assessment to manage this 
cumulative impact.  

 
3.4 A cumulative impact assessment may be published by a licensing authority to 

help it to limit the number or types of licence applications granted in areas where 
there is evidence to show that the number or density of licensed premises in the 
area is having a cumulative impact and leading to problems which are 
undermining the licensing objectives. These areas are called Cumulative Impact 
Areas (CIAs). CIAs can relate to applications for new premises licences and club 
premises certificates and applications to vary existing premises licences and 
club premises certificates in a specified area. They do not change existing 
licenses granted.  

 
3.5 Section 5A of the 2003 Act sets out what a licensing authority needs to do in 

order to publish a Cumulative Impact Assessment and review it, including the 
requirement to consult with the persons listed in section 5(3) of the 2003 Act 
(see paragraph 4.1 below for a full list). However, any Cumulative Impact 
Assessment published by a licensing authority must be summarised in its 
statement of licensing policy. Under section 5(6D) a licensing authority must also 
have regard to any Cumulative Impact Assessment it has published when 
determining or revising its statement of licensing policy. The Council has 
undertaken a simultaneous review of and consultation on its Statement of 
Licensing Policy and its Cumulative Impact Assessment which currently details 4 
Cumulative Impact Areas (CIAs). 

 

Page 26



LC201217R0 - 5 -  

3.6 In respect of the existing CIAs, if, having consulted, the licensing authority 
decides that it remains of the opinion set out in the Assessment, it must revise 
the Assessment to include a statement to that effect and set out the evidence as 
to why it remains of that opinion. It is important for any evidence included in the 
revised CIA to be robust and relevant to the current problems described. The 
licensing authority must also at this stage publish any other material change to 
the assessment. For example, if the types of premises or area described in the 
assessment have changed due to a shift in the nature of the problems being 
experienced or where there is evidence of the emergence of a new type of 
problem.  

 
3.7 There can be confusion about the difference between the “need” for premises 

and the “cumulative impact” of premises on the licensing objectives; for example, 
on crime and disorder. “Need” concerns the commercial demand for another pub 
or restaurant or hotel or shop and is a matter for the planning authority and for 
the market. This is not a matter for a licensing authority in discharging its 
licensing functions or for its statement of licensing policy. 

 
Review of Current CIAs:  
 
3.8 All four current CIAs relate specifically to off licences, shops and supermarkets 

that are permitted to sell alcohol for consumption ‘Off’ the premises – Off sales. 
Any decision to introduce a CIA or retain a CIA must be evidence based and a 
licensing authority is required to set out evidence of problems that are being 
caused or exacerbated by the cumulative impact of licensed premises in the 
area(s) described. That evidence is then used to justify the statement that it is 
likely that granting further premises licenses in that area (in this case for ‘Off’ 
sales of alcohol) would be inconsistent with the authority’s duty to promote the 
licensing objectives. 

 
3.9 When Cumulative Impact Assessments were given statutory status on 6 April 

2018, there were no transitional or grandfather provisions applying to cumulative 
impact zones already in existence which had been introduced in line with the 
then Statutory Guidance. They remained in place as part of the Council’s 
Statement of Licensing Policy but it was recommended in current guidance that 
they be reviewed within a maximum of three years following the legislative 
change or when the licensing policy was next reviewed, whichever was the 
sooner. The requirement to consider and review any Cumulative Impact Areas in 
place also forms part of the statutory requirements on the Council. At their 
meeting on 17 March 2021, the Council’s Licensing Committee considered a 
report and determined that the four existing Cumulative Impact Areas be 
retained in the Licensing Policy, pending the statutory review of the Statement of 
Licensing policy which is the subject of this report. 

 
3.10 As part of the review process of the existing CIAs, the Council gathered data 

relating to alcohol use from Public Health and Violence Reduction Network 
officers and this is set out in Appendix 1. Cognisant of the fact that there is no 
Public Health licensing objective in the Licensing Act 2003, the data needs to be 
assessed in respect of its relevance to the four licensing objectives in the Act. 
Accordingly, in precis –  

 

Page 27



LC201217R0 - 6 -  

• Data shows that there is a strong relationship between alcohol and a range of 
crimes including violence. 

• Graphs illustrate the volume and harm of alcohol related crime in the borough 
over the last 5 years. Volume has shown a steady increase. Harm figures have 
fluctuated but as can be seen, 2021/22 gave the highest figures over the last 
five years for both alcohol volume and harm.  

• The data shows that over 60% of alcohol related crime volume committed in the 
borough in 2021/22 was violence against the person. In relation to alcohol 
related crime harm in the borough in 2021/22, over half of all committed were 
sexual offences and around a third was violence. 

• Alcohol related crime is closely linked to domestic violence which has also seen 
higher levels of reported offences in Croydon. Alcohol related crime flagged as 
domestic has increased year on year over the past five years with 40% of all 
crimes being domestic in 2021/22. 

• That said, the proportion of alcohol related crime harm flagged as domestic 
committed over the last five years has stayed fairly static at 27%. 

• PHE analysis of alcohol sales data has shown a positive association at local 
authority level between off sales and alcohol specific hospital admissions. 

 
3.11 In respect of cumulative impact area 1 (Along the Brighton Road; South End; 

High Street, George Street corridor) members will notice that this corridor flows 
through one of the areas in the borough with the highest density of off licenses 
per population. It will also be noted that this corridor flows through the area in the 
borough with the highest rates in 2021/22 for both alcohol related crime volume 
and harm. In addition, it can be seen that this corridor flows through one of the 
two areas in the borough with the highest volume of ASB incidents in 2021/22.  

 
3.12 In respect of cumulative impact area 2 (Along the London Road/Streatham High 

Road corridor) members will note that this corridor flows through areas with high 
numbers of off licenses per population and also one of the areas in the borough 
with the highest density of off licenses per population. It will also be noted that 
this corridor flows through two areas with high rates in 2021/22 for both alcohol 
related crime volume and harm. In addition, it can be seen that this corridor flows 
through one of the two areas in the borough with the highest volume of ASB 
incidents in 2021/22. 

 
3.13 In respect of the cumulative impact area 3 (Along the Brigstock Road and High 

Street, Thornton Heath corridor) members will note that this corridor abuts two of 
the areas in the borough with the highest density of off licenses per population. It 
will also be noted that this corridor flows through areas that in 2021/22 had high 
levels of both alcohol related crime volume and harm. In addition, it can be seen 
that this corridor flows through two areas with high volumes of ASB incidents in 
2021/22.  

 
3.14 In respect of the cumulative impact area 4 (Along the length of Central Parade, 

New Addington) members will notice that that this corridor flows through one of 
the areas in the borough with the highest density of off licenses per population. 
Members will also note that in 2021/22, this area had lower (though not the 
lowest in the borough) levels of alcohol related crime volume and harm and anti- 
social behaviour than the three preceding CIAs. 

 

Page 28



LC201217R0 - 7 -  

3.15 Members will note that the four current CIAs saw the highest volume of alcohol 
related offences in 2021/22 in the last five years. This was measured by 
identifying the number of offences in a 150m area of the CIAs. It is considered 
that the above referenced problems are being caused or exacerbated by the 
cumulative impact of licensed premises in the area(s) described which sell 
alcohol for consumption off the premises. Consultation was therefore undertaken 
on these four areas being cumulative impact areas in future.  

 
3.16 Having regard to the contents of Appendix 1 and to the consultation responses 

detailed at Appendix 3 and 4 the Licensing Committee, acting as Licensing 
Authority of the Council, is recommended to determine that it remains of the 
opinion that the number of relevant authorisations (for ‘Off’ sales of alcohol by off 
licences, shops and supermarkets that are permitted to sell alcohol for 
consumption ‘Off’ the premises) in respect of premises in cumulative impact 
areas 1-4  as described in the cumulative impact assessment at Appendix 7 is 
such that it is likely that it would be inconsistent with the authority's duty under 
section 4(1) of the Licensing Act 2003 to grant any further relevant authorisations 
in respect of premises in cumulative impact areas 1-4. 

 
        Cumulative Impact Area 5: proposed new area: High Street and Portland Road, 

South Norwood: 
 
3.17 Having regard to Appendix 1, members will notice that in the High Street and 

Portland Road area of South Norwood, both alcohol related crime volume and 
alcohol related harm were at their highest in that area in 2021/22 over the 
previous five-year period, with significant increases in both volume and harm 
between 2019/20 and 2021/22. Two of the licensing objectives in the Act are the 
prevention of crime and disorder and the prevention of public nuisance. 

 
3.18 Between February 2018 and July 2022, the Licensing Authority received 9 

applications for premises which sell alcohol off the premises in this area and this 
has led to a net increase in the number of premises selling alcohol for 
consumption off the premises by 2 premises. In this area, there are currently 30 
premises which are classified as shops, supermarkets or off licenses and are 
authorised to sell alcohol off the premises, with 10 being on High Street and 20 
on Portland Road. 

 
3.19 In light of the increased alcohol related crime volume and alcohol related harm, it 

was considered that the above referenced problems are potentially being caused 
or exacerbated by the cumulative impact of licensed premises in the area(s) 
described which sell alcohol for consumption off the premises. Accordingly, 
consultation on including the area detailed in paragraph 3.19 below as a future 
cumulative impact area was suggested so that the Council is able to determine 
whether or not it is likely that granting further premises licenses in that area (in 
this case for ‘Off’ sales of alcohol from off-licenses, shops and supermarkets) 
would be inconsistent with the authority’s duty to promote the licensing 
objectives under the Act. 

 
3.20 A proposal to introduce a new Cumulative impact area (Cumulative Impact Area 

5) was therefore consulted on as part of the review. The area identified was High 
Street, South Norwood from the junctions with Oliver Grove and Station Road to 
the junction with Lancaster Road and Portland Road from the junction with High 

Page 29



LC201217R0 - 8 -  

Street to the junction with Spring Lane, Woodside in respect of sales of alcohol 
off the premises from off licenses, supermarkets and shops on the basis that the 
current evidence indicates that it experiences high levels of alcohol related crime 
and alcohol related hospital admissions and the density of shops selling alcohol 
for consumption off the premises is significantly higher than in other parts of the 
borough. A map of this proposed area is at Appendix 2 (marked cumulative 
impact area 5) 

 
3.21 Having regard to the contents of Appendix 1 and to the consultation responses 

detailed at Appendixes 3 and 4 the Licensing Committee, acting as Licensing 
Authority of the Council, is recommended to determine that it is of the opinion 
that the number of relevant authorisations (for ‘Off’ sales of alcohol by off 
licences, shops and supermarkets that are permitted to sell alcohol for 
consumption ‘Off’ the premises) in respect of premises in cumulative impact area 
5 as described in the cumulative impact assessment at Appendix 7 is such that it 
is likely that it would be inconsistent with the authority's duty under section 4(1) 
of the Licensing Act 2003 to grant any further relevant authorisations in respect 
of premises in cumulative impact area 5. 

 
Consultation outcome: 
 
3.22 The statutory consultation ran from 4 October 2022 for a period of 6 weeks, 

closing on 15 November 2022 and further detail relating to Consultation and 
future publication requirements are set out in Section 4 below. 

 
3.23 Written comments were received during the consultation period and a copy of 

those comments are attached at Appendix 3. Would committee members please 
note that in numerical terms, the consultation for the current review drew a 
greater volume of responses than previous reviews and the responses indicated 
that a majority of respondents supported the proposals in relation to cumulative 
impact areas. A schedule of the specific comments made is attached at 
Appendix 4 to this report showing where it is proposed that the policy is 
changed, or conversely is not altered, as a result of those comments. 

 
Proposed changes to the Statement of Licensing Policy: 
 
3.24 In undertaking the consultation and revisions to the Statement of Licensing 

Policy and considering the proposals in respect of the Cumulative Impact Areas 
as detailed in the Cumulative Impact Assessment, the Licensing Authority has 
had regard to the Licensing Act, secondary regulations, the Home Office 
Guidance issued to Local Licensing Authorities under s182 of the Act (April 2018 
edition) and the outcome of the consultation. 

 
3.25 In light of the outcome of the consultation and having due regard to the equalities 

impact assessment and the Council’s public sector equalities duty, Licensing 
Committee is recommended to approve the below summarised changes be 
made to the Statement of Licensing Policy and that the revised Statement of 
Licensing Policy at Appendix 8 be recommended to Full Council for approval. 

3.26 A summary of the recommended changes are as follows: 
 
• Retain the four current Cumulative Impact Areas as listed in the existing 

licensing policy 

Page 30

https://www.getinvolved.croydon.gov.uk/licensing-policy/widgets/55416/faqs#15372


LC201217R0 - 9 -  

• Introduce a new, fifth Cumulative Impact Area for High Street and Portland 
Road, South Norwood into the licensing policy 

• Remove the two 'special stress areas'– High Street & Portland Road, South 
Norwood and Lower Addiscombe Road 

• Update general details in the policy such as borough population, committee 
and board names and responsibilities. This includes changes to incorporate the 
new governance structure of the Council with the election of an Executive 
Mayor and reflects the aspirations for the borough.   

• Additional wording regarding Equalities duties for the Council and operators 
• Updates to references to relevant guidance documents 
 

4. CONSULTATION AND PUBLICATION 
 
4.1 Section 5(3) of the Licensing Act 2003 specifies which parties must be consulted 

with as part of any review of a Statement of Licensing Policy or in respect of 
cumulative impact area reviews or the introduction of new cumulative impact 
areas and these are – 

 
• the chief officer of police for the licensing authority’s area; 
• the fire and rescue authority for that area; 
• each Local Health Board for an area any part of which is in the licensing 

authority's area; 
• each local authority in England whose public health functions within the 

meaning of the National Health Service Act 2006 are exercisable in 
respect of an area any part of which is in the licensing authority's area; 

• such persons as the licensing authority considers to be representative of 
holders of premises licences issued by that authority;• such persons as 
the licensing authority considers to be representative of holders of club 
premises certificates issued by that authority; 

• such persons as the licensing authority considers to be representative of     
holders of personal licences issued by that authority; and, 

• such other persons as the licensing authority considers to be 
representative of businesses and residents in its area. 

 
4.2 In terms of selecting “such other persons” as are referenced in paragraph 4.1 

above, the Council also consulted a wide range of community organisations, 
relevant trade associations, all Croydon ward councillors and the three borough 
MPs. In addition, all available council communication channels were used to 
promote the consultation and encourage people to complete the survey.  

 
4.3 The consultation on the review of the Statement of Licensing Policy and 

cumulative impact assessment (which detailed 4 existing and 1 new proposed 
cumulative impact area) commenced on 4 October 2022. A copy of the current 
licensing policy together with information setting out the proposed amendments 
to the policy was circulated to statutory consultees and a number of interested 
parties under the definition of “such other persons”. In addition, all available 
council communication channels were used to promote the consultation and 
encourage people to complete the survey, including via social media and the 
Council’s website. A list of statutory consultees and interested parties included in 
the consultation is attached at Appendix 5.   

Page 31

https://www.getinvolved.croydon.gov.uk/licensing-policy/widgets/55416/faqs#15369


LC201217R0 - 10 -  

 
4.4 The statutory consultees and interested parties were asked for their comments 

and views on the proposed amendments to the policy. The Council undertook an 
online consultation and survey which invited residents and those working in the 
borough to give their views on the proposals. A copy of all information and 
documentation included in the consultation can be found at the following link: 
Have your say on Croydon's licensing policy | Get Involved Croydon . In addition, 
consultees were also invited to contact the Council’s Licensing Team directly 
with comments at licensing@croydon.gov.uk .  

 
4.5 The consultation period was 6 weeks, ending on 15 November 2022. A copy of 

the consultation documentation can be found at the link at 4.4 above and in 
addition, a copy of the consultation survey questions is attached at Appendix 6.  

 
4.6 Would the committee please note that if the revised Statement of Licensing 

Policy is approved by Full Council, officers will make arrangements to ensure 
that the Statement of Licensing Policy and Cumulative Impact Assessment is 
published in accordance with statutory requirements. It is proposed that the 
revised policy and cumulative impact assessment will be operative from no later 
than February 2023.  

 
4.7 The timetable leading up to the Licensing Policy being republished is as follows:  
 

DATE ACTION 
15.11.22 Deadline for consultation responses. 
29.11.22 Licensing Committee 
14.12.22 Full Council 
16.12.22 Publication  

February.23 Operative Date of new Statement of Licensing Policy 
 

 
5. FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 

 
1 Revenue and Capital consequences of report recommendations  

There are no direct financial implications associated with this report, subject 
to the risks at 2 & 3 below. This matter is being processed as part of normal 
duties and therefore the work associated with it is contained within the 
departmental budget. 

 
2 The Effect of the Decision 
 Decisions of the Licensing Sub Committee, the substantive licensing 

committee and full Council may be subject to appeal and/or Judicial 
Review.  

 
3 Risks 
  An appeal against a decision of the Licensing Sub-Committee or a Judicial 

Review of the application and/or policy making processes, including a 
Judicial review in respect of the Statement of Licensing Policy or adoption 
or retention of cumulative impact areas may present financial risks to the 
Council with regard to undertaking litigation and any award of costs against 
it which might arise as a result. 

 

Page 32

https://www.getinvolved.croydon.gov.uk/licensing-policy
mailto:licensing@croydon.gov.uk


LC201217R0 - 11 -  

4 Options 
There are no other options available to the Council. The Council is required 
to review its statement of Licensing Policy in the statutory time frame. In 
addition, the Council is required to review existing Cumulative Impact Areas 
to consider whether or not it is of the view that they ought to be retained. The 
Council has the power to consider the introduction of further cumulative 
impact areas subject to the necessary evidence.  

 
5 Savings/Future Efficiencies 

None identified 
  

(Approved by: Darrell Jones, Acting Head of Finance Sustainable 
Communities, Regeneration & Economic Recovery)  

 
6. COMMENTS OF THE SOLICITOR TO THE COUNCIL  
 

6.1 The Head of Litigation and Corporate Law comments on behalf of the 
Director of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer that the Statement of 
Licensing Policy provides the framework under which the licensing function 
is administered and the Council’s approach under the Licensing Act 2003.  

 
        6.2    The Licensing Act 2003 requires the determination and publication of a    

Statement of Licensing Policy for each successive five year period. The 
current policy expires in 2023.  The Council must keep the policy under 
review during the five year period and make such changes as are 
considered necessary.  

 
6.3    In accordance with the Licensing Act 2003 the Statement of Licensing 

Policy must be determined by Full Council after consultation has been 
undertaken with prescribed bodies. These prescribed bodies are detailed in 
section 4 above. 

 
6.4   The Licensing Authority must have regard to the statutory guidance issued 

under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 when drafting its policy and in 
undertaking any reviews of existing cumulative impact areas or seeking to 
remove or introduce new cumulative impact areas. The latest version of the 
Statutory Guidance was issued by the Home Office in April 2018.  

 
6.5   Section 5A of the 2003 Act sets out what a licensing authority needs to do 

in order to publish a Cumulative impact Assessment and review it, including 
the requirement to consult with the persons listed in section 5(3) of the 
2003 Act. These are the same parties who are set out in Section 4 above. 
The 2003 Act does not stipulate how the Cumulative impact assessment 
should be used once published, because the requirements for determining 
applications for new licences or variations are the same in areas with a 
Cumulative impact area (CIA) as they are elsewhere, as set out in sections 
18, 35, 72 and 85 of the Act. However, any Cumulative impact assessment 
published by a licensing authority must be summarised in its statement of 
licensing policy. Under section 5(6D) a licensing authority must also have 
regard to any Cumulative impact assessment it has published when 
determining or revising its statement of licensing policy. 

 

Page 33



LC201217R0 - 12 -  

6.6   The Cumulative Impact assessment must include a statement saying that 
the licensing authority considers that the number of premises licences 
and/or club premises certificates in one or more parts of the area described 
is such that it is likely that granting further licences would be inconsistent 
with the authority’s duty to promote the licensing objectives. As part of the 
publication a licensing authority must set out the evidential basis for its 
opinion. 

 
6.7   Cumulative Impact Assessments may relate to premises licensed to carry 

on any licensable activity, including the sale of alcohol for consumption on 
or off the premises and the provision of late night refreshment. The 
assessment may relate to all premises licences and club premises 
certificates in the area described in the assessment or parts thereof, or only 
to premises of a particular kind described in the assessment. The licensing 
authority must make clear, when publishing its assessment, which 
premises types it applies to. CIA’s do not apply to Temporary Event Notices 
(TEN’s). 

 
6.8   While the evidence underpinning the publication of a Cumulative Impact 

Assessment should generally be suitable as the basis for a decision to 
refuse an application or impose conditions, it does not change the 
fundamental way that decisions are made under the 2003 Act. Each 
decision in an area subject to a CIA (Cumulative Impact Area) therefore still 
needs to be made on a case-by-case basis and with a view to what is 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. Importantly, the 
publication of an assessment would not remove a licensing authority’s 
discretion to grant applications for new licences or applications to vary 
existing licences, where the authority considers this to be appropriate in the 
light of the individual circumstances of the case. Evidence of cumulative 
impact on the promotion of the licensing objectives needs to relate to the 
relevant problems identified in the specific area to be covered by the CIA. 
Members will also be aware that it is only when an application has drawn 
relevant representations and been referred to the licensing sub-committee 
as a result of those representations, that cumulative impact can be 
considered. Where no relevant representations have been received, the 
Sub-Committees’ ability to consider the matter is not engaged. 

 
6.9    After considering the available evidence and consulting those individuals 

and organisations listed in section 5(3) of the 2003 Act and any others, a 
licensing authority may be satisfied that it is appropriate to publish a 
Cumulative Impact Assessment. The steps to be followed in considering 
whether to publish a assessment are summarised below - 

 
• Identify concern about crime and disorder; public safety; public nuisance 

or protection of children from harm in a particular location. 
• Consider whether there is good evidence that crime and disorder or 

nuisance are occurring, or whether there are activities which pose a 
threat to public safety or the protection of children from harm. 

• If there is evidence that such problems are occurring, identify whether 
these problems are being caused by the customers of licensed 
premises, or that cumulative impact is imminent. 

• Identify the boundaries of the area where problems are occurring  

Page 34



LC201217R0 - 13 -  

• For the purposes of the consultation provide the persons specified in 
section 5(3) with the following information: 

- the reasons why it is considering publishing an assessment; 
- a general indication of the part or parts of its area which it is considering 

describing in the assessment; 
- whether it considers that the assessment will relate to all premises 

licence and club premises certificate applications and variation 
applications, or only to those of a particular kind described. 

• Subject to the outcome of the consultation, include and publish details of 
the assessment, including the evidence in support of the assessment 
and the particular kinds of premises the assessment relates to.  

• Summarise the licensing authority’s opinion in light of the evidence of 
cumulative impact (or any revision to an existing opinion) in the licensing 
policy statement and explain within the policy statement how the 
authority has had regard to any assessments it has published under 
section 5A. The summary within the licensing policy statement should 
include, but is not limited to: the nature of the problems identified and the 
evidence for such problems; the geographical extent of the area covered 
by the assessment; the types of premises described in the assessment; 
and the types of applications for which it would likely be inconsistent with 
the licensing authority’s duty to promote the licensing objectives to grant.  

• After publishing an assessment the licensing authority must, within three 
years, consider whether it remains of the opinion set out in the 
assessment. In order to decide whether it remains of this opinion it must 
again consult the persons listed in section 5(3). If having consulted with 
the statutory list of persons the licensing authority decides that it is no 
longer of the opinion set out in the assessment, it must publish a 
statement to that effect. The statement must make clear that any 
reference to the assessment in its licensing policy statement no longer 
applies. The licensing authority should then remove any reference to the 
assessment within its licensing policy statement at the earliest 
opportunity. 

 
6.10      If, having consulted, the licensing authority decides that it remains of the 

opinion set out in the assessment, it must revise the assessment to 
include a statement to that effect and set out the evidence as to why it 
remains of that opinion. It will be important for any evidence included in 
the revised assessment to be robust and relevant to the current 
problems described. The licensing authority must also at this stage 
publish any other material change to the assessment. For example, if the 
types of premises or area described in the assessment have changed 
due to a shift in the nature of the problems being experienced or where 
there is evidence of the emergence of a new type of problem. 

  
         Approved by: Sandra Herbert Head of Litigation and Corporate Law on behalf of 

Stephen Lawrence-Orumwense, Director of Legal Services and Monitoring 
Officer   

 
 
7.      HUMAN RESOURCES IMPACT  
 

Page 35



LC201217R0 - 14 -  

7.1 The workload associated with the review of the Licensing Policy will be 
undertaken within existing resources.  

 
8 EQUALITIES IMPACT  
 
8.1 The council has an obligation under the Public Sector equality duty, which is to 

eliminate unlawful discrimination, to advance equality of opportunity and to build 
better relationships between groups with protected characteristics. All negative 
impacts associated with this proposal have been identified and mitigated for 
groups with protected characteristics in the EQIA.  

  
Since sign off in September, the service have enhanced the supporting EQIA 
with consultation comments which are significantly supportive of the proposals.  

 
Approved by: Gavin Handford (Director of Policy, Programmes and 
Performance) 

 
9 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 
 
9.1 The provisions of the Licensing Act 2003 include consideration of the 

environmental impact of licensed premises.  
 
10 CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPACT  
 
10.1 Three of the four licensing objectives in the Act relate to the prevention of crime 

and disorder and public nuisance and the protection of children from harm.  The 
licensing policy is a document that the Council, as licensing authority, should 
have regard to when deciding licence/certificate applications.  

 
11 DATA PROTECTION IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 WILL THE SUBJECT OF THE REPORT INVOLVE THE PROCESSING OF 

‘PERSONAL DATA’? 
Whilst personal data may be processed as part of the consultation, the 
information will not be shared any further. A DPIA is mandatory where data 
processing “is likely to result in a high risk to the rights and freedoms of natural 
persons”. In this instance the information that may be processed has been 
categorised as low risk and therefore a DPIA is not required. 

    
  (Approved by: Steve Iles, Director of Sustainable Communities) 
 
 
CONTACT OFFICER:  Michael Goddard, Head of Environmental Health, 
Trading Standards and Licensing 
  Tel. Ext. 28259 
 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: None 
 
APPENDICES: 
Appendix 1: Evidence base regarding cumulative impact for consultation purposes 
Appendix 2: Map of proposed cumulative impact area 5 

Page 36



LC201217R0 - 15 -  

Appendix 3: Survey response report 
Appendix 4: Comments to consultation with responses and recommendations 

regarding policy 
Appendix 5: Consultees list 
Appendix 6: Survey questions 
Appendix 7: Draft Cumulative Impact Assessment: November 2022 
Appendix 8: Revised Statement of Licensing Policy 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



Page 180



Page 181



Page 182


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	3 Minutes of previous Licensing Sub-Committee Meetings
	Minutes
	LSC Minutes 9 September 2022
	Minutes

	Draft Minutes Licensing Sub-Committee 23 September 2022
	Minutes


	6 Licensing Act 2003 - Review of the London Borough of Croydon Statement of Licensing Policy and Cumulative Impact Areas within the London Borough of Croydon Statement of Licensing Policy
		Retain the four current Cumulative Impact Areas as listed in the existing licensing policy
		Introduce a new, fifth Cumulative Impact Area for High Street and Portland Road, South Norwood into the licensing policy
		Remove the two 'special stress areas'– High Street & Portland Road, South Norwood and Lower Addiscombe Road
		Update general details in the policy such as borough population, committee and board names and responsibilities. This includes changes to incorporate the new governance structure of the Council with the election of an Executive Mayor and reflects the aspirations for the borough.
		Additional wording regarding Equalities duties for the Council and operators
		Updates to references to relevant guidance documents
	1	Revenue and Capital consequences of report recommendations
	Appendices


